
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   June 21, 2023 

TO:     MWA Board Members 

CC:       MWA Staff  

FROM:  Michael McCoy, Executive Director 

RE:    Wednesday, June 21, 2023, Board Meeting 
This month’s board meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, June 21, 2023, at 5:45 pm in the 
board room at Central Office (300 East Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa). If you have 
questions about any items listed below, please call me at 323.6519 (w) or 707.3869 (c). I look 
forward to seeing you on Wednesday. 

The following numbered items correspond with the number of the item on the agenda: 

Consent Agenda Items for Approval  

11. Resolution 06-23-06 – Approval of Semiannual Bond Payment to Polk County – Action 
for Approval
Payment to Polk County for bond issuance for MRF and refinance of the Metro 
Northwest Transfer Station occurs in November and May until May 2040. The November 
payment is interest only and the May payment is principal and interest. The May 2023 
payment was $3,040,825.00. Staff recommends approval.

12. Resolution 06-23-07 – Approval of Prairie Solid Waste Contract Renewal – Action for 
Approval
The option to extend is being requested because the current agreement expired in April 
2022. Legal counsel drafted the extension to align the pricing and the expiration of the 
agreement to April 2024. The price increase is based on terms in the original agreement 
and is linked to the change in the Consumer Price Index. Staff recommends approval.

13. Resolution 06-23-08 – Approval of Agreement Extension for Clean Harbors 
Environmental Service, Inc. – Action for Approval
Metro Waste Authority contracts with Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc., for the 
removal and disposal of hazardous waste and management of recyclables. The 
proposed extension is the second and final one-year extension of the 2019 Service 
Agreement and reflects an 8% increase. Staff recommends approval.

Page 1 of 51



14. Resolution 06-23-09 – Approval of Agreement Extension for A–Tech Recycling – Action
for Approval
Metro Waste Authority contracts with A–Tec Recycling for the removal and disposal of
hazardous waste and management of recyclables. The proposed extension is the second
and final one-year extension of the 2019 Service Agreement with a price increase for
ballasts and capacitors that contain PCBs. All other disposal costs will stay the same.
Staff recommends approval.

15. Resolution 06-23-10 – Approval of Remodel for Metro Park East Administration Building
– Action for Approval
The Administrative Building at Metro Park East Landfill opened in 1997. Since opening,
the way the building is used has changed significantly. This remodel will support existing
staff and allow for future growth. Staff recommends approval.

16. Resolution 06-23-11 – Approval of Furniture for Metro Park East Administration Building
– Action for Approval
The Administration building at Metro Park East Landfill opened in 1997. Since opening,
the way the building is used has changed significantly. New furniture is needed to update
the space and accommodate additional employees stationed at the location. Staff
recommends approval.

Regular Agenda Items for Approval 

17. Resolution 06-23-12 – Approval of Skylight Replacement for Metro Park East
Administration Building – Action Item
The large skylight on the roof of the Administration Building at Metro Park East Landfill
has significant leaks during rain. The skylight has been repaired many times and staff is
recommending a replacement. This is an unbudgeted expense of $25,975, however,
funds are available in the site maintenance operating fund. Staff recommends approval.

18. Resolution 06-23-13 – Approval of Council Bluffs Recycling Contract – Action Item
This contract establishes a new partnership between the City of Council Bluffs and Metro
Waste Authority for the transportation, processing, and marketing of recyclable material.
Staff recommends approval.

Page 2 of 51



Board of Directors 
2023 Calendar Year 

Dean O’Connor 
Chair 

Rob Sarchet 
Vice-Chair 

Dean O’Connor 
Altoona 

Mark Holm 
Ankeny 

Bob Peffer 
Bondurant 

John Edwards 
Clive 

Joe Gatto 
Des Moines 

Steve Allen 
Elkhart 

David Gisch 
Grimes 

Tom Cope 
Johnston 

Bill Roberts 
Mitchellville 

Brian Baker 
Norwalk 

Mark Konrad 
Pleasant Hill 

Rob Sarchet 
Polk City 

Tom Hockensmith 
Polk County 

Gerald Lane 
Runnells 

Matt Blake 
Urbandale 

Doug Loots 
West Des Moines 

Susan Skeries 
Windsor Heights 

Michael McCoy 
 Executive Director 

Metro Waste Authority 
Board Meeting 
June 21, 2023 

MWA Central Office 
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

5:45 pm 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call

2. Approval of Regular Agenda

3. Public Forum

CONSENT AGENDA 
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate 
discussion unless someone, Board or Public, requests an item be removed for 
consideration: 

4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 16

5. Consideration of Minutes April 2023, Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting –
Action for Approval

6. Resolution 06-23-01 – Consideration of March 2023, Financial Statements –
Action to Receive and File

7. Resolution 06-23-02 – Consideration of April 2023, Financial Statements –
Action to Receive and File

8. Resolution 06-23-03 – Consideration of March 2023, Monthly Expenditures –
Action for Approval

9. Resolution 06-23-04 – Consideration of April 2023, Monthly Expenditures –
Action for Approval

10. Resolution 06-23-05 – Consideration of May 2023, Monthly Expenditures –
Action for Approval

11. Resolution 06-23-06 – Approval of Semiannual Bond Payment to Polk County –
Action for Approval

12. Resolution 06-23-07 – Approval of Prairie Solid Waste Contract Renewal –
Action for Approval

13. Resolution 06-23-08 – Approval of Agreement Extension for Clean Harbors 
Environmental Service, Inc. – Action for Approval

14. Resolution 06-23-09 – Approval of Agreement Extension for A-Tec Recycling –
Action for Approval

15. Resolution 06-23-10 – Approval of Remodel for Metro Park East Administration 
Building – Action for Approval

16. Resolution 06-23-11 – Approval of Furniture for Metro Park East Administration 
Building – Action for Approval

Page 3 of 51



Page 2 of 2 

MWA Board Meeting 
June 21, 2023 

END CONSENT AGENDA 

Regular Agenda Items for Approval – Items 17 through 22 

17. Resolution 06-23-12 – Approval of Skylight Replacement for Metro Park East
Administration Building – Action Item

18. Resolution 06-23-13 – Approval of Council Bluffs Recycling Contract – Action
Item

19. Discussion: Automation of Can Redemption

20. Discussion: Curb It! Extra

21. Discussion: Workers Compensation Rate

22. Closed session pursuant to Iowa Code 21.5.1(c) to discuss strategy with
counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation is imminent
where its disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the position of
the governmental body in that litigation.

23. Potential action item following closed session discussion of strategy with
counsel in matters that are presently in litigation.

24. Director’s Report

25. Chair’s Report

26. General Board Discussion and Other Business

27. Correspondence

28. Adjournment
July Executive/Finance Meeting: July 5, 2023, MWA Central Office, 300 E.
Locust Street, Ste 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 12:00 pm.

July Board Meeting: July 19, 2023, MWA Central Office, 300 E. Locust Street, 
Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 5:45 pm. 

Page 4 of 51



300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

April 19, 2023, Unofficial Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting Minutes 

4. Call to Order
The meeting was held at Metro Waste Authority’s Central Office. Dean O’Connor, chair,
called the April 19, 2023, Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting to order at 5:45pm. A
quorum was present.

Roll Call – MWA Board Representatives/Alternates in Attendance
Dean O’Connor, Altoona – In Person
Mark Holm, Ankeny – Virtual
Bob Peffer, Bondurant – Virtual
John Edwards, Clive – In Person
Joe Gatto, Des Moines – Virtual
David Gisch, Grimes – In Person
Tom Cope, Johnston – Virtual
Bill Roberts, Mitchellville – Virtual
Brian Baker, Norwalk – In Person
Rob Sarchet, Polk City – In Person
Tom Hockensmith, Polk County – Virtual
Gerald Lane, Runnells – In Person
Matt Blake, Urbandale – Virtual
Doug Loots, West Des Moines – In Person
Susan Skeries, Windsor Heights – Virtual

5. Approval of Regular Agenda
Moved by Clive, seconded by Grimes, to approve the April 19, 2023, board meeting
agenda as presented. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

6. Public Forum
There were no requests to address the Board.
______________________________________________________________________
CONSENT AGENDA
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate discussion unless
someone, Board or Public, requests that an item be removed for consideration:

7. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 7 through 12
Moved by Clive, seconded by Polk County to approve the Consent Agenda, items 7
through 12. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

8. Consideration of Minutes of March 15, 2023, Metro Waste Authority Board
Meeting – Action for Approval

9. Resolution 04-23-01 – Consideration of February 2023, Financial Statement – Action to
Receive and File

Page 5 of 51



12. Resolution 04-23-02 – Approval of Closeout of Project P-63 Cell E & Phase 1 Cover    
Improvements at Metro Park East Landfill – Action for Approval 
 

END CONSENT AGENDA 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Regular Agenda  
 
10. Discussion: Recycling Drop-offs 

Dan Haag, recycling administrator, provided an overview of Metro Waste Authority 
(MWA) cardboard drop-offs. Haag explained MWA has 23 cardboard drop-offs 
throughout the Des Moines Metro that are heavily utilized by residents.  Haag reviewed 
the revenue vs. expenses for the drop-offs. The service is free to residents with space 
provided by each city.   

 
11. Presentation: Can Redemption  

Kyle Fisher, facility manager for Metro Hazardous Waste Drop-off, reported MWA began 
a can redemption pilot program in July 2022 at Metro Hazardous Waste Drop-off 
(MHWD) in preparation of anticipated changes to Iowa’s Bottle Bill. Following the 
success of the initial pilot, MWA opened a second site at Metro Recycling Facility (MRF) 
in Grimes, in January 2023. Since opening, MWA has accepted one million cans.  
 

12. Director’s Report 
McCoy reported the recruitment of the Solid Waste Administrator has been challenging. 
Staff are considering a modification to the position by creating a second manager 
position. Between the two positions, one manager would focus more towards 
environmental and the other would focus more on the administrative side of landfill 
operations.  
 
The May executive finance meeting will be held at Central Office (300 E. Locust Street, 
Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa) on Wednesday, May 3, 2023, at 12:00 pm. 
 
The May board meeting will be held at Central Office (300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100, 
Des Moines, Iowa) on Wednesday, May 17, 2023, at 5:45 pm. 
 

13. Chair’s Report 
No report.  

 
14. General Board Discussion and Other Business 

Tom Hockensmith, Polk County, inquired on the management of waste during RAGBRI. 
 
Doug Loots, West Des Moines, requested an update on the clean-up from the fire at C6 
Zero in Marengo, IA. McCoy reported MWA requested additional testing on the material 
from EcoSource but has not received the testing report.  
 

15. Adjournment 
Moved by Clive, seconded by West Des Moines, to adjourn the April 19, 2023, board 
meeting. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. Meeting adjourned at 6:31pm. 
 
 
__________________________________   _____________________________ 

                 Michael McCoy, Executive Director                       Dean O’Connor, Chair 
 

Page 6 of 51



Page 7 of 51



Page 8 of 51



Page 9 of 51



Page 10 of 51



Page 11 of 51



Page 12 of 51



Page 13 of 51



Page 14 of 51



Page 15 of 51



Page 16 of 51



Page 17 of 51



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

June 21, 2023 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 11 

ITEM:  
Approval of Semiannual Bond Payment to Polk County 

SUMMARY:  
Second of two semiannual payments to Polk County for bond proceeds related to the MRF and 
refinance of the Northwest Transfer Station. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Payment to Polk County for bond issuance for MRF and refinance of Northwest Transfer Station 
will occur in November and May until May 2040. The November payment is interest only and the 
May payment is principal and interest. The May 2023 payment was $3,040,825.00. 

These payments will be part of the consent agenda as per the November 4, 2020, Executive 
Finance Committee meeting. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
This amount will be paid for from a sinking fund that requires monthly deposits. 

CONTACT: 
Michael McCoy, executive director, 515.323.6535 

Page 18 of 51



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

June 21, 2023 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 12 

ITEM:  
Approval of Prairie Solid Waste Agency Contract Renewal 

SUMMARY:   
The option to extend is being requested because the current agreement expired in April 2022. Legal 
counsel drafted the extension to align the pricing and the expiration of the agreement to April 2024. 
The price increase is based on terms in the original agreement and is linked to the change in the 
Consumer Price Index.   

DISCUSSION POINTS:   
The initial term of the contract, signed in 2007, was 10 years. A five-year extension was executed in 
2017 with a price per ton of $17.56. Staff is recommending a one-year extension to allow for a more 
comprehensive evaluation of pricing. The pricing in the extension is based on the previous 
agreement language and is calculated through the change in the Consumer Price Index – All Urban 
Consumers Midwest. The price per ton is changing from $17.56/ton to $22.01/ton. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Recommend approval of extension to existing Prairie Solid Waste Agency agreement through April 
2024. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Extension Agreement

CONTACT:   
Michael McCoy, executive director, 515.323.6519 

Page 19 of 51



Page 20 of 51



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

June 21, 2023 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 13 

ITEM:  
Approval of Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc. Agreement Extension 

SUMMARY:   
Metro Waste Authority contracts with Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc., for the 
removal and disposal of hazardous waste and management of recyclables. The proposed is the 
second and final one-year extension of the 2019 Service Agreement. 

DISCUSSION POINTS:   
MWA has contracted with Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc., for hazardous waste 
disposal since 1994. Through numerous RFP processes, Clean Harbors has continued to be 
awarded the contract due to fair pricing and excellent service. MWA budgeted for a 10% cost 
increase for all disposal at MHWD for FY23/24. Clean Harbors presented an 8% disposal cost 
increase. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends a one-year extension to the agreement with Clean Harbors Environmental 
Services, Inc. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS:   
The extension guarantees pricing for one year. The proposed pricing is within the 23/24 budget. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Clean Harbors proposed disposal costs

CONTACT:   
Dan Haag, recycling administrator, 515.333.4430 

Page 21 of 51



13915 A Plaza
Omaha, NE 68144
www.cleanharbors.com

05-23-2023

Attn:Mr Kyle Fischer
Metro Waste Authority
300 East Locust Street
Suite 100
Des Moines, IA 50309

Report #66578

Dear Mr Fischer:

Thank you for using Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc. (Clean Harbors) for your waste 
management needs. We are sending you this new quotation with increased pricing based on recent 
industry changes and market conditions. Existing services agreement terms and conditions apply to 
this quoted business. This new quotation is based upon submitted waste profiles and previous 
shipment history.

We remind you that we offer our clients a broad spectrum of environmental services in addition to 
the ability to dispose of hazardous material at or through a Clean Harbors' owned and operated 
facility. A Clean Harbors professional can assist you with:

. Waste Transportation & Disposal . 24-Hour Environmental Emergency Response

. Laboratory Chemical Packing . Industrial Services

. Field Services . Insite Services

Clean Harbors has the appropriate permits and licenses for the acceptance and disposal of the 
waste streams identified within this quotation.

I look forward to continuing to service your environmental needs. To place an order, please contact 
our Customer Service group at 800.444.4244. If you have any questions about our new pricing or 
need further assistance, you may reach me at the number below.

Sincerely,

Jeffrey Fishbaugh 
Account Manager 

METROWST23 / HHW Page 1 of 7Executed on: 5/23/2023 9:46:39 AM

Page 22 of 51



Clean Harbors House Hold Hazardous Waste Pricing Schedule

Report ID: 66578

METROWST23 - Metro Waste Authority T&D Contract

Labor, Equipment and Materials
Description UOM Price (USD)

FIELD PERSONNEL

Chemist HR $64.00

Chemist Overtime HR $64.00

Chemist Doubletime HR $64.00

SUPPORT EQUIPMENT

Box Truck HR no charge $0.00

DOT Rated Heavy Duty Pallet EA no charge $0.00

DOT SHIPPING CONTAINERS*

16 Gal / 70 L Open Poly Drum 1H2/Y56/S EA $72.00

1L Capacity/PBI Box (4G Type) EA $58.00

30 Gal / 120 Litre Open Poly Drum 1H2/Y142/S EA $49.00

30 Gal / 120 Litre Steel Drum, Reconditioned 1A2/Y1.2/100 EA $91.00

30 Gal / 120 Litre Steel Drum, X rated, 1A2/X1.2/100 EA $102.00

5 Gal / 20 Litre Poly Drum 1H2/Y1.5/60 EA $12.70

5 Gal / 20 Litre Steel Drum 1A2/Y1.8/100 EA $28.00

55 G / 205 L Closed Steel Drum, Recon 1A1/Y1.4/100 (17-E) EA $70.00

55 G / 205 L Steel Drum, Reconditioned 1A2/Y1.2/100 (17-H) EA $42.00

55 Gal / 205 L Fiber Drum, Recon, w/Lever Lock 1G/Y160/S EA $84.00

55 Gal / 205 Litre Fiber Drum 1G/Y190/S EA $35.00

55 Gal / 205 Litre Open Head Poly, Reconditioned Drum 
1H2/Y2

EA $63.00

55 Gal / 205 Litre Steel Drum, X rated (1A2/X1.2/100) EA $200.00

85 G / 320 L Steel Drum, Reconded 1A2/X400/S (Overpack) EA $376.00

Flexbin, 1 Cubic Yard Flexbin 11G/Y/2022/1122 EA $109.00

Lab pak box, 55gal UN 4G/Y147.3/S HD poly liner included EA $21.50

ABSORBENT MATERIALS*

Poly Absorbent, 20 lb / 23 kg BAG $30.00

Vermiculite 4 cuft BAG $46.00

MISCELLANEOUS*

Poly Bags, 6mil, per Bag EA $5.00

MISCELLANEOUS

85 Gal Poly Drum 1H2/Y318/S (Overpack) EA $217.00

85 gallon poly overpack drum EA $370.00

Absorbent Pad (101 Grade) per Pad EA $83.00

Hazardous Waste Labels / Markings ROL $123.00

Labels - DOT Diamonds ROL $120.00

Standard Clean Pack PPE EA no charge $0.00

METROWST23 / HHW Page 2 of 7Executed on: 5/23/2023 9:46:39 AM

Page 23 of 51



Clean Harbors House Hold Hazardous Waste Pricing Schedule

Report ID: 66578

METROWST23 - Metro Waste Authority T&D Contract

Waste Code Disposal Pricing

Waste Code Description UOM Price (USD)

A22K LOW BTU ORGANIC LIQUID 05DM $94.00

A22K LOW BTU ORGANIC LIQUID 16DM $189.00

A22K LOW BTU ORGANIC LIQUID 30DM $235.00

A22K LOW BTU ORGANIC LIQUID 55DM $315.00

A31 SPECIFICATION OILS 05DM $43.00

A31 SPECIFICATION OILS 16DM $57.00

A31 SPECIFICATION OILS 30DM $71.00

A31 SPECIFICATION OILS 55DM $94.00

A40 ORGANIC LIQUID WITH HALOGENS 05DM $91.00

A40 ORGANIC LIQUID WITH HALOGENS 16DM $181.00

A40 ORGANIC LIQUID WITH HALOGENS 30DM $228.00

A40 ORGANIC LIQUID WITH HALOGENS 55DM $302.00

B28 OXIDIZER SOLUTIONS 05DM $118.00

B28 OXIDIZER SOLUTIONS 16DM $235.00

B28 OXIDIZER SOLUTIONS 30DM $295.00

B28 OXIDIZER SOLUTIONS 55DM $393.00

B35 GLYCOLS 05DM $43.00

B35 GLYCOLS 16DM $71.00

B35 GLYCOLS 30DM $90.00

B35 GLYCOLS 55DM $120.00

CFL1 MERCURY BULBS FOR RECLAMATION LBS $0.70
Minimum Price $79.00 per 5 gallon pail

CFL2 MISC. MERCURY BULBS FOR RECLAIM LBS $3.25
Minimum Price $79.00 per 5 gallon pail

CHBI PCB BALLASTS FOR INCINERATION LBS $3.36
Minimum Price $113.00 per 5 gallon pail

COF OIL FILTERS FOR RECLAMATION LBS $0.84
Minimum Price $82.00 per 5 gallon pail

D92K HIGHER TOXICITY SOLIDS FOR INCINERATION 05DM $164.00

D92K HIGHER TOXICITY SOLIDS FOR INCINERATION 16DM $328.00

D92K HIGHER TOXICITY SOLIDS FOR INCINERATION 30DM $410.00

D92K HIGHER TOXICITY SOLIDS FOR INCINERATION 55DM $546.00

D92K HIGHER TOXICITY SOLIDS FOR INCINERATION FBIN $1259.00

EEE EQUIPMENT FOR RECLAMATION LBS $0.35
Minimum Price $473.00 per pallet

FB1 LIQUID FOR FUEL 05DM $51.00

FB1 LIQUID FOR FUEL 16DM $52.00

FB1 LIQUID FOR FUEL 30DM $65.00

FB1 LIQUID FOR FUEL 55DM $78.00

FB3 SEMI-LIQUID FOR FUEL 05DM $51.00

FB3 SEMI-LIQUID FOR FUEL 16DM $52.00

FB3 SEMI-LIQUID FOR FUEL 30DM $65.00

METROWST23 / HHW Page 3 of 7Executed on: 5/23/2023 9:46:39 AM

Page 24 of 51



Clean Harbors House Hold Hazardous Waste Pricing Schedule

Report ID: 66578

METROWST23 - Metro Waste Authority T&D Contract

Waste Code Disposal Pricing

Waste Code Description UOM Price (USD)

FB3 SEMI-LIQUID FOR FUEL 55DM $87.00

FB3R LATEX & ALKYD PAINT FOR RECYCLING 05DM $94.00

FB3R LATEX & ALKYD PAINT FOR RECYCLING 16DM $189.00

FB3R LATEX & ALKYD PAINT FOR RECYCLING 30DM $235.00

FB3R LATEX & ALKYD PAINT FOR RECYCLING 55DM $315.00

LA99H LABPACK ALKALI METALS KILN READY FOR 
INCINERATION

05DM $624.00

LBBGB SMALL SEALED CELL BATTERIES AND 
PORTABLE ELECTRONICS FOR REC

05DM $158.00

LBD1 ALKALINE DRY CELL BATTERIES FOR 
RECLAMATION (MERCURY FREE)

LBS $1.45

Minimum Price $100.00 per 5 gallon pail

LBD2 NI-CAD BATTERIES WET OR DRY FOR 
RECLAMATION

LBS $1.65

Minimum Price $113.00 per 5 gallon pail

LBLA LEAD ACID BATTERIES FOR RECLAMATION LBS $0.41
Minimum Price $112.00 per 5 gallon pail

LCCR LABPACK FOR INCINERATION 05DM $82.00

LCCR LABPACK FOR INCINERATION 16DM $164.00

LCCR LABPACK FOR INCINERATION 30DM $207.00

LCCR LABPACK FOR INCINERATION 55DM $274.00

LCCR LABPACK FOR INCINERATION FBIN $964.00

LCCRA LABPACK ACID & ACID COMPATIBLES FOR 
INCINERATION

05DM $82.00

LCCRA LABPACK ACID & ACID COMPATIBLES FOR 
INCINERATION

16DM $164.00

LCCRA LABPACK ACID & ACID COMPATIBLES FOR 
INCINERATION

30DM $207.00

LCCRA LABPACK ACID & ACID COMPATIBLES FOR 
INCINERATION

55DM $274.00

LCCRC LABPACK ORGANICS FOR INCINERATION 05DM $118.00

LCCRC LABPACK ORGANICS FOR INCINERATION 16DM $235.00

LCCRC LABPACK ORGANICS FOR INCINERATION 30DM $295.00

LCCRC LABPACK ORGANICS FOR INCINERATION 55DM $393.00

LCCRI LABPACK REQUIRED TO BE PACKAGED ALONE 
PER DOT

LBS $13.40

Minimum Price $177.00 per 5 gallon pail

LCCRN LABPACK NON-HAZARDOUS FOR INCINERATION 05DM $71.00

LCCRN LABPACK NON-HAZARDOUS FOR INCINERATION 16DM $144.00

LCCRN LABPACK NON-HAZARDOUS FOR INCINERATION 30DM $179.00

LCCRN LABPACK NON-HAZARDOUS FOR INCINERATION 55DM $240.00

LCCRO LABPACK OXIDIZERS FOR INCINERATION 05DM $91.00

LCCRO LABPACK OXIDIZERS FOR INCINERATION 16DM $181.00

LCCRO LABPACK OXIDIZERS FOR INCINERATION 30DM $228.00

METROWST23 / HHW Page 4 of 7Executed on: 5/23/2023 9:46:39 AM

Page 25 of 51



Clean Harbors House Hold Hazardous Waste Pricing Schedule

Report ID: 66578

METROWST23 - Metro Waste Authority T&D Contract

Waste Code Disposal Pricing

Waste Code Description UOM Price (USD)

LCCRO LABPACK OXIDIZERS FOR INCINERATION 55DM $303.00

LCCRQ AEROSOLS FOR INCINERATION 05DM $79.00

LCCRQ AEROSOLS FOR INCINERATION 16DM $158.00

LCCRQ AEROSOLS FOR INCINERATION 30DM $195.00

LCCRQ AEROSOLS FOR INCINERATION 55DM $159.00

LCCRQ AEROSOLS FOR INCINERATION FBIN $636.00

LCCRX LABPACK NON INFECTIOUS SHARPS FOR 
INCINERATION

30DM $207.00

LCHG1 ELEMENTAL MERCURY FOR 
TREATMENT/STABILIZATION

LBS $49.00

Minimum Price $693.00 per 5 gallon pail

LCHG2 LABPACK MERCURY DEVICES / MERCURY 
DEBRIS FOR RETORT

05DM $442.00

LCHG2 LABPACK MERCURY DEVICES / MERCURY 
DEBRIS FOR RETORT

16DM $881.00

LCHG4 LABPACK MERCURY SALTS AND SOLUTIONS 
FOR RETORT

05DM $504.00

LCHGI LABPACK HIGH SUBCATEGORY MERCURY FOR 
INCINERATION

05DM $674.00

LCY1 PROPANE CYLINDERS FOR RECYCLING CYLE $20.50

LCY1 PROPANE CYLINDERS FOR RECYCLING CYSM $20.50

LCY4 INERT OR CALIBRATION GAS CYLINDERS FOR 
DISPOSAL

CYLE $82.00

LCY4 INERT OR CALIBRATION GAS CYLINDERS FOR 
DISPOSAL

CYSM $82.00

LFB1 LABPACK FOR FUELS BLENDING 05DM $105.00

LFB1 LABPACK FOR FUELS BLENDING 16DM $212.00

LFB1 LABPACK FOR FUELS BLENDING 30DM $265.00

LFB1 LABPACK FOR FUELS BLENDING 55DM $349.00

LPTN NON-PROCESSABLE PAINT & PAINT RELATED 
MTRL FOR INCINERATION

05DM $57.00

LPTN NON-PROCESSABLE PAINT & PAINT RELATED 
MTRL FOR INCINERATION

16DM $113.00

LPTN NON-PROCESSABLE PAINT & PAINT RELATED 
MTRL FOR INCINERATION

30DM $143.00

LPTN NON-PROCESSABLE PAINT & PAINT RELATED 
MTRL FOR INCINERATION

55DM $190.00

LPTN NON-PROCESSABLE PAINT & PAINT RELATED 
MTRL FOR INCINERATION

FBIN $624.00

LRCT LABPACK REACTIVES FOR INCINERATION LBS $13.40
Minimum Price $177.00 per 5 gallon pail

LRCTB LABPACK REACTIVE BASIC & BASIC 
COMPATIBLES FOR INCINERATION

LBS $13.40

Minimum Price $177.00 per 5 gallon pail

METROWST23 / HHW Page 5 of 7Executed on: 5/23/2023 9:46:39 AM

Page 26 of 51



Clean Harbors House Hold Hazardous Waste Pricing Schedule

Report ID: 66578

METROWST23 - Metro Waste Authority T&D Contract

Profile Disposal Pricing

Profile No Waste Description UOM Price (USD)

CH39144 PESTICIDE, SOLID FBIN $964.00

METROWST23 / HHW Page 6 of 7Executed on: 5/23/2023 9:46:39 AM

Page 27 of 51



Clean Harbors House Hold Hazardous Waste Pricing Schedule

Report ID: 66578

METROWST23 - Metro Waste Authority T&D Contract

GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. Except where superseded by an existing services agreement the following terms and conditions apply to
this quoted business.

2. Pricing effective July 1, 2023.
3. Terms: Net 30 Days
4. Interest will be charged at 1.5% per month or maximum allowed by law for all past due amounts.
5. Local, state and federal fees/taxes applying to the generating location/receiving facilities are not included in

disposal pricing and will be added to each invoice as applicable.
6. Materials subject to additional charges if they do not conform to the listed specifications.
7. All drums for disposal must be D.O.T. approved containers and in good condition.
8. All containers must be marked with Clean Harbors' profile number.
9. Clean Harbors will provide a manifest and necessary labels for transportation with a charge of $1.25 per

label.
10. Electronically submitted profiles will be approved at no charge.  Paper profiles will be charged at $75.00

each.
11. Clean Harbors supports many invoice delivery options (E-mail, Electronic Invoicing, EDI, Etc.).  Pricing is

based on Clean Harbors' standard invoice delivery method of E-mail.  If another delivery method is required
there could be an additional service fee per invoice.  Any alternate delivery method must be reviewed and
approved by Clean Harbors prior to acceptance and implementation.

12. Compressed gas cylinders requiring special handling due to inoperable valves will be assessed an
additional charge of $400.00 per cylinder.  Cylinders larger than medium size will be quoted case by case.
This charge may be sent as a supplemental invoice.

13. A variable Recovery Fee (that fluctuates with the DOE national average diesel price), currently at 18.0%, is
included in our quoted pricing.

14. Transportation charges to the final disposal facility will be charged in addition to local transportation to our
truck to truck hub/local facility and will vary with logistics and routing.

15. Pickups that require same day or next day service may be subject to additional charges.
16. Pickups cancelled within 72 hours of scheduling will be subject to cancellation charges.
17. Transportation charges to the final disposal facility will be charged in addition to local transportation to our

truck to truck hub/local facility and will vary with logistics and routing.
18. Out of Service (OSD) for PCB incinerables should be clearly identified in Section 14 of the manifest.  Prices

for these items are only effective if received within 6 months of the OSD.
19. Standard disposal conversions (excluding minimums) apply to containers other than 5 gallon drums: 6-20g

60%, 21-30g 75%, 31-55g 100%, 56-85g 145%, FBIN 350%, TOT2(<300gal TOTE) 500%, TOTE 630%.
20. In the event that legal or other action is required to collect unpaid invoice balances, Customer agrees to pay

all costs of collection, including reasonable attorneys' fees, and agrees to the jurisdiction of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

21. On June 30, 2018 the EPA activated the E-Manifest system. The EPA will charge the receiving TSDF a fee
per manifest. To cover the cost of the E-Manifest, Clean Harbors will charge $20 per manifest on every
invoice.

22. CARRAA: The additional excise and sales tax added to the price of diesel fuel at the pump under the
California Road Repair and Accountability Act (CARRAA) of 2017 has increased the cost of providing waste
management services in the State of California. To off-set this extra cost, Clean Harbors is implementing a
2% CARRAA Fee on every invoice for a California generator.

23. Time over eight (8) hours in the normal workday and all day Saturday is considered overtime and will be
billed at 1.5 times the applicable straight time rate for all billable personnel unless otherwise quoted.
Sunday and Holidays are considered premium time and will be billed at 2.0 times the applicable straight
time rate for all billable personnel unless otherwise quoted.

24. Final invoicing will be based upon the unit rates for those items used in performance of the services and
materials shipped for disposal. In the event the unit price of an item required for proper performance of
service is not listed in this quotation, the item will be invoiced at list pricing.

METROWST23 / HHW Page 7 of 7Executed on: 5/23/2023 9:46:39 AM

Page 28 of 51



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

June 21, 2023 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 14 

ITEM:  
Approval of A-Tec Recycling Agreement Extension 

SUMMARY:  
Metro Waste Authority contracts with A-Tec Recycling for the removal and disposal of hazardous 
waste and management of recyclables. The proposed is the second and final one-year extension 
of the 2019 Service Agreement.  

DISCUSSION POINTS:   
MWA has contracted with A-Tec Recycling, a local, Iowa-based company, for more than 20 years. 
A-Tec has been a reliable partner that offers great service and fair pricing. In this extension, A-Tec
is only raising the disposal price of ballasts and capacitors that contain PCBs. PCBs, or
Polychlorinated Biphenyls, are a hazardous oil added to older electronic devices to protect them
from overheating. All other disposal costs will remain unchanged. A-Tec recycles fluorescent bulbs,
rechargeable batteries, and electronics waste.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends a one-year extension to the agreement with A-Tec Recycling. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS:   
The extension guarantees pricing for one year. The proposed pricing is within the 23/24 budget. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• A-Tec Recycling proposed disposal costs

CONTACT:   
Dan Haag, recycling administrator, 515.333.4430 

Page 29 of 51



EXTENSION AGREEMENT 
OF 2019 CONTRACT FOR THE 

REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF HAZARDOUS WASTE AND 
MANAGEMENT OF RECYCLABLES 

(A-tec Recycling, Inc.) 

METRO WASTE AUTHORITY 
300 E. Locust Suite 100 
Des Moines, IA 50309 

515-244-0021

Page 30 of 51



 THIS EXTENSION AGREEMENT (“Extension Agreement”) is made entered into  

on the ___ day of ___________, 2023, by and between A-tec Recycling, Inc. 

(“CONTRACTOR”), and the Metro Waste Authority (“MWA”), an  

Intergovernmental agency formed pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 28E, with its principle office 

at 300 East Locust Street, Suite 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309. 

 WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR and MWA have previously entered into a contract 

(“Contract”) regarding the transportation and disposal of Household Hazardous Waste and now 

wish to extend that Contract for an additional year subject to the modifications set below. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises, and of their mutual obligations 

hereinafter set forth, MWA and the Contractor, intending to be legally bound, covenant and 

agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. EXTENSION AGREEMENT 

All provisions of the Contract entered into on the 1st day of July 2023, by and between 

CONTRACTOR and MWA wherein CONTRACTOR provides technical assistance, 

transportation and disposal of Household Hazardous Waste and waste generated by Very Small 

Quantity Generators is hereby extended for one additional year subject to the following 

modifications: 

1. Article I of the Contract shall be amended by striking the ending date set out in 

paragraph A of the Contract (June 30, 2023) and substituting the new ending date 

of June 30, 2024. 

All other provisions set out in the Contract shall remain the same. 

 

 

Page 31 of 51



Page 32 of 51



2023
Flourescent Lamps 4' and under $0.22/lamp
Flourescent Lamps over 4' $0.44/lamp
Compact (CFL), U-Bend and Circular $0.44/lamp
All HID Lamps $1.00/lamp
Specialty Lamps (LED & Shielded) $1.99/lamp
All Broken Lamps (sealed container) $1.50/pound
Broken HID'S (sealed container) $2.00/pound
DEHP ballasts $0.20/pound
PCB Ballasts $1.25/pound $2.95/pound
Non-PCB ballast Free/pound
PCB capacitors $4.75/pound $6.95/pound
Non-PCB capacitors $1.00/each
Batteries-Lead Acid/Alkaline/Nickel Cadmium $0.75/pound
Batteries Silver Oxide $10.00/pound
Mercury Containing Devices $10.00/pound
Computer (CRT) Monitors/LED Monitors under 27" $10.00/each
Computer (CRT) Monitors/LED Monitors under 39" $15.00/each
Computer (CRT) Monitors/LED Monitors over 39" $25.00/each
Console/Projection TV's $30.00/each
Computer components (by pound) $.20/pound
Drums provided at no charge $50.00/damaged
Gaylord boxes $10.00/damaged
Buckets $5.00/damaged
Emergency Pick-up Fee $100.00
Stop charge Generator No charge ($100 min)
Labor Charge After  1st hour $50.00/hour

ATTACHMENT C

A-TEC RECYCLING, INC. PRICING LIST FOR METRO
WASTE AUTHORITY (2019)

Page 33 of 51



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

June 21, 2023 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 15 

ITEM:  
Approval for Remodel of Metro Park East Landfill Administration Building 

SUMMARY:   
The Administration building at Metro Park East Landfill opened in 1997. The way the building is 
used has changed significantly since opening and this remodel will support existing staff as well as 
allow for future growth.  

DISCUSSION POINTS:   
The original design of the Administration building supported up to seven employee workspaces. 
Today, due to expanded compliance and customer care staffing, up to 10 employees are housed 
from this location daily. The proposed remodel will refresh the building and repurpose existing 
spaces to support additional workspaces. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends approval to hire Mike Tigges Construction for the remodel of the MPE 
Administration building. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS:   
The bid for the remodel is $50,730. The Capital Budget includes $85,000 for this project. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Bid from Mike Tigges Construction

CONTACT:   
Cassie Riley, public affairs administrator, 515.323.6502 

Page 34 of 51



Page 1 of 2

Mike Tigges Construction LLC
Box 71033

Clive, IA  50325 US

miketigges@yahoo.com

 

Estimate
ADDRESS
Metro Waste Authority
12181 University Ave NE
Des Moines, IA  50169

ESTIMATE 1086
DATE 06/08/2023

SERVICE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Services Remodel of Metro East Landfill Office
 - removal of existing carpeting and floor tile in designated 
areas (per Josie) - now includes east office 
 - reception wall/counter & desk removed
 - SW office door/frame removed (to be reused) - new 
opening cut in at new location
 - walls constructed to create (2) offices - steel studs & 
drywall
 - door openings to break room and SW office filled in
 - metal door frames, prefinished wood doors, & hardware 
installed for SW office and two new offices (to match 
existing)
 - break room island cabinets & top relocated
 - existing walls repaired as needed, wallpaper removed
 - new drywall primed and painted, all existing walls painted, 
designated walls to have accent color
 - all door frames painted, (5) exposed roof trusses & air 
ducts painted new color
 - electrical & data additions/alterations for office and new 
work stations, outlets/data for (2) wall mount flat screen TV's 
at new locations
 - concrete floors repaired, prepped & cleaned for new finish
 - there is a slight chance a moisture barrier would need to 
be applied to the concrete, a test will be conducted. If 
needed the cost would be $2600
 - Epoxy flake floor coating system applied over 
approximately 2592 sq ft
 - vinyl cove base installed throughout
 - final details and cleaning completed
 - does not include painting
 - office furniture/files relocated by others
 - dumpster provided by you
 - does not include repair or removal of skylight - separate 
quote will be submitted

1 49,830.00 49,830.00

Services Option: Replace existing (24) 2x4 florescent light fixtures 
with new 2x4 LED fixtures

1 5,950.00 5,950.00

Services Option: Install LED lamps in hanging fixtures in conference 
room & reception

1 900.00 900.00

Bid includes labor and material to complete work listed

Page 35 of 51



Page 2 of 2

TOTAL $56,680.00

Accepted By

Accepted Date

Page 36 of 51



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

June 21, 2023 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 16 

ITEM:  
Approval of Furniture for Metro Park East Landfill Administration Building 

SUMMARY:   
The Administration building at Metro Park East Landfill opened in 1997. The way the building is 
used has changed significantly since its opening. New furniture is needed to update the space and 
accommodate additional employees stationed from the location.  

DISCUSSION POINTS:   
The original design of the Administration building supported up to seven employee workspaces. 
Today, due to expanded compliance and customer care staffing, up to 10 employees are housed 
from this location daily. The proposed furniture will update the building and better align with the 
number of employees requiring workstations from this site daily. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends approval to purchase new furniture from Triplett and KOCH for the MPE 
Administration building. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS:   
The Capital Budget includes $85,000 for construction and finishes for this project. The total project 
will not exceed budget. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Proposed Furniture Concepts

CONTACT:   
Cassie Riley, public affairs administrator, 515.323.6502 

Page 37 of 51



Current Proposed 

Page 38 of 51



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

June 21, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM 17 

ITEM:  
Approval of Skylight Replacement for Metro Park East Landfill Administration Building 

SUMMARY:   
The Administration building at Metro Park East Landfill opened in 1997. The original roof includes a 
large skylight over the reception area of the lobby that leaks during rain. 

DISCUSSION POINTS:   
The large skylight in the roof of the Administration building at Metro Park East Landfill has 
significant leaks during rain. The skylight has been repaired many times and staff is recommending 
a replacement. Alternatives were considered, such as covering with regular metal roofing, but 
contractors warned the structure cannot support the additional weight and recommended a new 
skylight. Several contractors surveyed the job but only one bid was submitted. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends approval to hire Mike Tigges Construction to replace the skylight in the roof of 
the Administration building. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS:   
This is an unbudgeted expense of $25,975, however, funds are available in the site maintenance 
operating fund. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Bid from Mike Tigges Construction

CONTACT:   
Cassie Riley, public affairs administrator, 515.323.6502 

Page 39 of 51



Page 1 of 1

Mike Tigges Construction LLC
Box 71033 

Clive, IA  50325 US

miketigges@yahoo.com

Estimate
ADDRESS
Metro Waste Authority 
12181 University Ave NE 
Des Moines, IA  50169

ESTIMATE 1102
DATE 03/20/2023

SERVICE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Services Replacement of skylight system 
- existing skylight removed and disposed of
- furnish and install Kalwall 2 3/4" thick translucent panel
skylight system
- 22' 9 "long x 8' 3" wide single sloped on a  3/12 pitch
- includes all panels, battens, closure flashings, sealants,
and stainless steel fasteners

The translucent panels are constructed with .070" super 
weathering Crystal exterior face, .045" White S-171 interior 
face, and .23TB "U" factor (thermally broken) by NFRC 
Method and 12x24 Shoji grid pattern. All exposed aluminum 
to be painted Kuwall's standard CRF coating, color to be 
selected from standard colors 

The discovery of unforeseen damage to roof structure upon 
removal of existing skylight will be reported for further review 
and action 

Lead times: shop drawings 3 weeks, fabrication & delivery 
10 weeks

1 25,975.00 25,975.00

Please contact me with any questions TOTAL $25,975.00

Accepted By

Accepted Date

Page 40 of 51



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

June 21, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM 18 

ITEM:  
Approval of Council Bluffs Recycling Contract 

SUMMARY:   
This contract establishes a new partnership between the City of Council Bluffs and Metro Waste 
Authority for the transportation, processing, and marketing of recyclable material.  

DISCUSSION POINTS:   
The City of Council Bluffs is changing from drop-off to curbside collection for residential recycling 
and plans to have material collected processed at Metro Recycling Facility in Grimes. As part of the 
agreement, the City is responsible for curbside collection and loading into MWA trucks to transport 
to MRF for processing and sale.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends approval of this three-year agreement with the City of Council Bluffs. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Draft Agreement

CONTACT:   
Leslie Irlbeck, deputy director, 515.323.6501 

Page 41 of 51



Page 42 of 51



Page 43 of 51



Page 44 of 51



Page 45 of 51



Page 46 of 51



Page 47 of 51



Page 48 of 51



Page 49 of 51



Page 50 of 51



Page 51 of 51


	Board Memo - Pgs. 1-2
	Agenda - Pgs. 3-4
	Agenda Item #5 - Apr. Minutes - Pgs. 5-6
	Agenda Item #8 - Mar. Expenditures - Pgs. 7-10
	Agenda Item #9 - Apr. Expenditures - Pgs. 11-14
	Agenda Item #10 - May Expenditures - Pgs. 15-17
	Agenda Item #11 - Semiannual Bond Pymt - Pg. 18
	Agenda Item #12 - PSW Renewal - Pgs. 19-20
	Agenda Item #13 - Clean Harbors Renewal - Pgs. 21-28
	Agenda Item #14 - A-Tec Recycling Renewal  - Pgs. 29-33
	Agenda Item #15 - MPE Remodel  - Pgs. 34-36
	Agenda Item #16 - MPE Furniture  - Pgs. 37-38
	Agenda Item #17 - MPE Skylight - Pgs. 39-40
	Agenda Item #18 - Council Bluff Recycling Contract - Pgs. 41-51



